Network for a Healthy California―African American Campaign
2010 Faith Projects RFA Bidders Teleconference Questions and Answers
Thursday, May 6, 2010, 10 am to 12 pm.

	Q1:  During the 36-month funding period, what is the minimum number of churches to be recruited?  (Scope of Work – section 5)

A:  Ten (10).  Beginning October 1, 2010, and continuing each year during the contract period, Faith Associations or Alliances will provide support to a minimum of ten (10) churches in the implementation of the Body & Soul program and its supporting activities, reaching a minimum of 2,500 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program―Education (SNAP-Ed) eligible African American adults with a focus on women ages 18-54 years.  Faith Projects may choose to work with more than ten churches, at their own discretion.  The Faith Project may maintain contract-related relationships with these original ten churches throughout the duration of the contract or add/replace these churches as needed.  Faith Projects must, however, reach a minimum of 2,500 SNAP-Ed eligible African American adults each year of the contract, resulting in 7,500 reached over three years.     


	Q2:  Can the proposed contract staff (consultants/subcontractors) work part-time, or will they need to work full-time?  (Subcontracts section – page 14)

A:  Part-Time and/or Full-Time.  Contract Staff may be either full-time or part-time depending on the staffing needs and considerations of the Faith Project. 


	Q3:  If a congregation’s audience is not showing up on the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) census tracts/blocks, what additional documentation/determination is required?  (SOW – page 2, item #4)

A:  If churches do not “qualify” through our Geographic Information System (GIS) Faith Projects may administer the “Qualifying Site Survey” at the non-qualifying church in order to document the income levels of the members.  

	Q4:  Can project funds be used to administer mini-grants to churches?   (Attachment 1, Allowable & Unallowable costs)  
A:  Maybe.  The Faith Project would need to develop a comprehensive proposal for specific mini-grants and submit to the Network for United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) approval.  The approval process, however, is very lengthy and could take 6 to 8 months, creating substantial challenges for the implementation of the Faith Project SOW.  


	Q5:  The SOW indicates that there should be coordination with the Regional Networks regarding potentially eligible church sites.  Will the Public Health Institute and/or the Regional Network provide a list of potentially eligible sites for applicants to review and contact?  (SOW, page 2)
A:  No.  The churches partnering to fulfill the 2010 Faith Projects SOW should already be familiar with one another before they submit an application.  


	Q6:  Can you clarify the roles and expectations of the individual Church Advisory 
      Groups?
A: The Church Advisory Group will: 

· Meet at least 3 times per year 

· Provide oversight to the Body & Soul program at each church site
· Develop and adopt church-wide policy or guidelines regarding foods served in the church

· Inform the congregation of the new policies via public announcement
· Obtain the Pastor's approval of the policy/guidelines at each Body & Soul participating church

· Prominently post the policy/guidelines in a high-traffic or appropriate area within public view

· Expand and/or update the church-wide policy/guidelines as needed

(Please see SOW, page 4) 
Q7:  How does the Body & Soul Church Advisory Group relate or differ from a Church Health Ministry?  

A: The structure of Church Health Ministries varies widely from church to church and even across different denominations.  Participating Body & Soul Churches will most likely adapt their own Church Health Ministries to the Body & Soul Health Ministry Model.    

Q8:  If awarded, are the Faith Project staff/contractor(s) expected to attend all three (3) of each the partnering churches’ Church Advisory Group meetings each year?  (SOW, page 4) 

A: The Faith Project is supposed to manage the managers who are coordinating the Advisory Group meetings at each respective church-site.  This management may require Faith Project managers to attend Advisory Group meetings, from time to time, to make sure each group is structured according to the Body & Soul model and that each group is carrying out its duties.  


	Q9:  Why do you emphasize reaching/recruiting primarily medium or large size churches/congregations to assist with meeting the minimum goal of 2,500 participants?  
A:  Ten (10) medium to large-sized churches with fairly strong representation from the target audience will more easily facilitate the task of completing the Faith Project’s SOW.    
Q10:  How did the Network come up with 2,500?  
A:  If Faith Projects partner with ten medium to large-sized churches and reach 250 SNAP-Ed participants at each church, the result will be 2,500 per year.  
Q11:  Is working with and/or recruiting smaller churches (150 or less membership) acceptable?  (RFA, page 5)
A:  Yes.  The annual goal of 2,500 SNAP-Ed participants reached in a Federal Fiscal Year may also be facilitated through a larger number of smaller churches.  For example, an applicant might make the argument that they can reach 2,500 SNAP-Ed participants through 30 to 40 small churches.  Nonetheless, the prospect of a Faith Project overseeing so many churches will most likely create management challenges for the Faith Project.   It is the responsibility of the applicant to build a convincing case.


	Q12:  Will a repository of templates be provided for items such as the one-year SOW implementation plan, media materials, etc., or will these items need to be created by each awardee/contractor?  (SOW, form #6)
A:  The Forms required by the Network for documentation of contract-related activities will be provided to each contractor.  Most of these forms are already available as attachments to the Faith Guidelines Manual located on the African American Campaign Homepage: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/cpns/Pages/AfricanAmericanCampaign.aspx 


	Q13:  Can a church within the Faith Alliance serve as the fiscal and administrative agent on behalf of the Alliance?  Example: If there are 12 churches within the Alliance, can one of them serve as the fiscal and administrative agent for the entire Alliance?  (Section C – Eligibility Requirements, 1.b Faith Alliance page 6). 

A:  Yes.  The faith alliance will have a clearly identified fiscal and administrative agent (or church) as well as an explanation of the degree of administrative and fiscal authority afforded to the agent on behalf of the churches in the alliance.  (Eligibility Requirements, 1.b Faith Alliance page 6)


	Q14:  Is there a particular or specific survey that we could use to qualify churches?  For instance, we have a church in Palo Alto that does not fit into a qualifying census track even though we know that the people there are the target audience.  

A:  Yes.  The Qualifying Site Survey was developed internally.  If there is a site that does not fit in the zones identified in our GIS database, then the qualifying site survey may be utilized. 
Q15:  Is this survey done pre-award or post-award? 

A:  Post-award.  If you are fairly confident that church will qualify, you can submit the name of this church in your application.  You will want to note very clearly that this particular church does not qualify through conventional means.  That will be a signal to us that we will want to look into it a little further.  If we are interested in working with you, we would pursue alternatives for qualifying the church.  



	Q16:  Do you use census information to determine whether or not a church is SNAP-eligible? 

A:  Yes.  Based on census information, we can identify the regions in California with strong concentrations of the target audience.   From our perspective, the target audience is women with incomes less than 185% of the Federal Poverty Level.       



	Q17:  Is there a way of contacting or reviewing the experiences of the prior awardees?  

A: Yes.
1) FAME Assistance Corporation of Los Angeles, 1968 W. Adams Blvd, Los Angeles, CA 90018.  Contact Heather Hayes: heatherh@famecorporations.org 
2) Southern California 2nd Jurisdiction of the Church of God in Christ in San Diego, 9829 Campo Road, Spring Valley, CA  91977. Contact: Pastor Lonnie Lynch: Pastorllynch@juno.com 


	Q18:  The prior awardees are both from Southern California.  Does Public Health Institute have a commitment to broaden the regions and do anything in Northern California?  

A:  We are very interested in looking at applications from Central and Northern California.  In fact, on page 1 of the RFA, we state that we are managing two faith projects in Southern California and, consequently, preference will be given to applicants from Central and Northern California.  Nonetheless, we are considering applications from all over the state.  Our interests in Central and Northern California will not stop us from reviewing a promising application from Southern California.



	Q19:  Is this Bidders’ Teleconference the only time that we will be able to ask questions of the state?

A:  Yes. This is the only time to ask questions related to the content of the RFA. If, however, an issue concerning a form or attachment to the RFA were to arise, we would be happy to respond to questions about it and to correct the problem.  


	Q20:  Will we receive a confirmation that you have received the Letter of Intent?

A:  Yes.  A confirmation email will be sent to each potential applicant who has submitted the Letter of Intent.  If you did submit a letter of intent and did not receive an e-mail, please follow up to ensure we received it.  You may call Terri Adams @ 916-445-6311 or call the main line @ 916-449-5400 and ask for her.  



	Q21:  Can a non-profit organization that is working with a church alliance qualify as the fiscal agent for this project?  

A:  Yes.  There should be a clearly defined fiscal and administrative agent.  Our original vision for the administrative agent was a church.  However, it could be a non-profit organization, provided that the non-profit had a past working relationship with the churches outlined in the application. (Please see “Eligibility Requirements on Page 6 of the RFA)
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